
County Hall, Durham, DH1 5UL
Tel: 03000 267202

Web Site: www.durham.gov.uk

Charter Trustees for the City of Durham

Ref: JM 20 October 2015

To: The Mayor and Members of the 
CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM
(Councillors J Blakey, B Moir, J Armstrong, D Bell, 
A Bonner, J Chaplow, P Conway, K Corrigan, N Foster, 
D Freeman, O Gunn, D Hall, G Holland, A Hopgood, 
B Kellett, N Martin, M Nicholls, R Ormerod, M Plews, 
J Robinson, M Simmons, D Stoker, P Taylor, J Turnbull, 
M Wilkes and M Williams).

Dear Sir/Madam

A Meeting of the CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM will be held in the 
Committee Room 1B, County Hall, Durham, on Wednesday 28 October 2015 at 1.00 pm.

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence  
2. Minutes of the meeting held on the 17 June 2015  (Pages 1 - 4)
3. Declarations of interest, if any  
4. Update Report - Report of the Clerk to the Charter Trustees  (Pages 5 - 8)
5. Conclusion of Audit for the year ended 31 March 2015 - Report of the 

Treasurer  (Pages 9 - 22)
6. Revenue Outturn for the period ending 30 September 2015 and Projected 

Outturn to 31 March 2016 - Report of the Treasurer  (Pages 23 - 26)
7. Mayoral Robes - Verbal Update of the Mayor  
8. Any other business  

Yours faithfully

Clerk

http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/
http://www.durham.gov.uk/




CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM

At the Meeting of the Charter Trustees for the City of Durham held in the 
Committee Room 1B, County Hall, Durham, on Wednesday 17 June 2015 at 1.00 pm

Present: The Right Worshipful the Mayor of Durham, Councillor J  Blakey  (in the 
Chair) and Councillors  J Armstrong, D Bell, P Conway, K Corrigan, D Freeman, 
O Gunn, G Holland, B Kellett, N Martin, J Robinson, M Simmons, P Taylor, 
J Turnbull, M Wilkes and M Williams.

1  Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor A Bonner, J Chaplow, 
A Hopgood, B Moir, M Nicholls and R Ormerod.

2  Minutes

Minutes of the meeting held on the 27 May 2015 were confirmed as a correct record 
and signed by the Mayor.

Councillor J Robinson referred to item 16 of the minutes of the meeting held on the 
27 May 2015 regarding the Appointment of the Mayors Chaplain, he advised that he 
had been asked that a letter be sent to the Cathedral formally appointing the Dean of 
Durham as the Mayor’s Chaplain in order for the horary position to be incorporated 
into the job description.

3  Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

4  Revenue Outturn for the year ended 31 March 2015

Charter Trustees considered a report of the Treasurer that provided information on 
the 2014/15 revenue outturn compared to the original budget (for copy see file of 
minutes).

The Assistant Finance Manager reported that the total net revenue expenditure for 
2014/15 was £55,829, an underspend of £3,588 against the original budget of 
£59,417.

Resolved:-
That the outturn position for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 be noted.



5  Annual Return for the year ended 31 March 2015

Charter Trustees considered a report of the Treasurer seeking approval of the 
Accounting Statements and Annual Governance Statement for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2015, which were included in the Annual Return (for copy see file of 
minutes).

Resolved:-
That the Annual Return (Sections 1 and 2) for the financial year ended 31 March 
2015 be approved.

6  Role of Past Mayors

Councillor G Holland asked Trustees to consider the position of former Mayors of the 
City of Durham being involved in Mayoral Services as the present level of support 
received by the Mayor at events have diminished.

Councillor G Holland felt that former Mayors and Durham County Council Alderman 
that have served as Charter Trustees should be offered, as of right, procession at 
appropriate civic events as they have served the community for their year in office 
and have earned recognition.  He suggested that gowns previously used by officers 
of the former Durham City Council be used at such events.

Members agreed that former Mayors should be involved in Mayoral Services and 
discussed the order of procession, the number of Durham County Council Aldermen 
that have served as Charter Trustees and resources that would be required.

Resolved:-
 That in principal, former Mayors of the City Durham and Aldermen of Durham 

County Council that had served as Charter Trustees be involved in Mayoral 
Services be accepted, with the Mayor to decide the order of procession;

 That the quantity of officer robes from the former Durham City Council be 
obtained;

 That numbers of Durham County Council Aldermen that had served as 
Charter Trustees be obtained.

The Mayor agreed that in order to keep members informed, the next items of 
business could be reported.

7 Agreement Update

The Clerk updated Charter Trustees on the progress in negotiating an agreement 
with the County Council in relation to the contents of the Town Hall in Durham. He 
advised that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services required appropriate 
authority which was to be considered at Cabinet on 15 July 2015. Following final 
approval, the agreement would be signed by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor.



8 Mayoral Robes

The Mayor informed Charter Trustees that the Mayoral robes require cleaning and 
suggested that, with agreement from Trustees, to look into costs for purchasing new 
robes that would not require specialist cleaning and could be cleaned closer to home 
for less cost. The original robes could then be put on display in the Town Hall. 

Resolved:-
That estimated costs be obtained to purchase new Mayoral robes and the 
information be reported back to Charter Trustees.





CHARTER TRUSTEES FOR THE CITY OF 
DURHAM

28 October 2015

Update Report 

Report of Bryan Smith, Clerk to the Charter Trustees

Purpose of the Report

1. To update Charter Trustees upon events following last meeting on 
17 June 2015. 

Background

2. Charter Trustees will recall that following last year’s annual audit the 
Issues Arising Report from external auditors BDO required that two 
issues be addressed namely 1) compile an Asset Register to help 
ensure recorded value of assets and investments is, as far as possible, 
accurate and to ensure the Trust is safeguarding it assets. 2) carry out 
a risk assessments process to review effectiveness of internal control 
and review annually before the end of the financial year. Such risk 
assessment to be reviewed and minuted as evidence of each review.

3. Assets Register - At the last meeting (17.6.15 ) Charter Trustees 
authorised the signing of a Transfer Agreement between Durham 
County Council and the Charter Trustees to formalise the transfer of 
physical assets particularly those held at Town Hall Durham. The 
Transfer Agreement was signed sealed and completed on 22 July 2015 
and has been verified by internal audit as part of this year’s audit 
review process.

4. Valuation of Mayoral Chains – arrangements were made for inspection 
and valuation of the Mayor and Deputy Mayors chains of office by 
Anderson & Garland in June. A copy of the valuation report will be 
available for Charter Trustees to view at the meeting. The chains of 
office have been added to the Assets Register as assets held by the 
Charter Trustees. 

                                                                                                         
5. Risk Assessment matrix - Charter Trustees will recall that the 

assessment matrix was approved at the meeting on 1 April 2015 for the 
previous financial year. Last year’s audit report recommendation was 



that the assessment “…must be reviewed and minuted as evidence of 
the review being undertaken annually before the end of the financial 
year.”  Unfortunately when the BDO audit review report was received 
recently on 15.9.15 it confirms that the Risk Assessment was not 
minuted during the year and when queried by the Clerk it transpires 
they take the financial year to year end 31 March 2015. Hence we were 
one day late and this is noted and arrangements will be made to 
ensure the Risk Assessment will be approved and minuted before year 
end for this year.    

6. Ceremonial occasions and Past Mayors – use of robes – following the 
debate and recommendations at the last meeting it is confirmed that:-
 

There are 8 Officers robes (Black with Silver Trim)

The number of County Alderman that have been Trustees is 1 
Alderman B Myers.

Please note there are 10 former Mayors.

Please note also that there are 20 additional Trustee Robes 
available (Black with Red Trim).

     
          Recommendation

 7. That the various updates be noted and accepted.
           

Contact: Bryan Smith Tel: 03000 269717



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance – Detailed within the report.

Staffing - None specific within the report.

Risk - None specific within the report.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - None specific within 
the report.

Accommodation - None specific within the report.

Crime and Disorder - None specific within the report.

Human Rights - None specific within the report.

Consultation - None specific within the report.

Procurement - None specific within the report.

Disability Issues - None specific within the report.

Legal Implications - None specific within the report.





Charter Trustees for the City of 
Durham

28 October 2015

Conclusion of Audit for the year 
ended 31 March 2015 

Report of Jeff Garfoot, Treasurer

Introduction

1 BDO LLP (the external auditor of the Charter Trust) has completed 
their audit of the annual return for the financial year ending 31 March 
2015. They require their audit opinion and findings to be presented to a 
meeting of Charter Trustees in order to minute the approval of the final, 
audited annual return.

2 A copy of the annual return, which includes the auditor’s certificate and 
opinion (page 4), is attached as Appendix B.  

Audit Findings

3 The Issues Arising Report (attached as Appendix C) raised only one 
item for the attention of Charter Trustees which is: 

 Risk assessment not minuted during the year

Although a risk assessment was undertaken during 2014/15 and 
the auditor deemed it to be adequate, the meeting to minute this 
review took place on 1 April 2015, which the auditor states was 
too late for the 2014/15 financial year. They report that this is in 
breach of regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2011. 

4 This issue has resulted in the annual return for 2014/15 being qualified.

Action Required

5 The following action is required in order to satisfy the external auditor in 
future: 



 Risk Assessment

A risk assessment must be carried out and the review minuted as 
evidenced at least once per year. 

Following a report presented by the Clerk to the Charter Trustees 
at the meeting on 18 June 2014, it had already been agreed that a 
risk assessment be placed on the agenda each year. The review 
must be minuted in each future year and in doing so, will ensure 
this will not be raised as an audit issue in future.

Recommendations

6 It is recommended that Charter Trustees:

 approve the audited annual return for 2014/15;

 agree to review a risk assessment of internal controls and report 
this review annually at future meetings before the end of each 
financial year.

Contact:         Beverley White                                       Tel. 03000 261900  



Appendix A

Risks and Implications

Finance

The report provides the conclusion of BDO’s audit of the annual report for 
2014/15.

Staffing
None

Equality and Diversity
None

Accommodation
None

Crime and Disorder
None

Human Rights
None

Consultation
None

Procurement
None

Disability Discrimination Act
None

Legal Implications
None



Appendix B
Attach pdf – audited annual return

Appendix C

Attach pdf – Issues Arising Report from BDO























1

Charter Trustees for the City of 
Durham

28 October 2015

Revenue Outturn for the period 
ending 30 September 2015 and 
Projected Outturn to 31 March 2016

Report of Jeff Garfoot, Treasurer

INTRODUCTION
1 The purpose of this report is to provide information on the:

 actual expenditure compared to the profiled budget for the 
period ending 30 September 2015;

 forecast of expenditure to 31 March 2016 in comparison to the 
2015/16 original budget.

COMPARISON OF REVENUE OUTTURN WITH BUDGET

2 At 30 September 2015 actual net expenditure was £28,684; an 
underspend of £4,891 (or 14.57%) against a profiled budget of 
£33,575. 

3 It is anticipated that actual expenditure at 31 March 2016 will be slightly 
lower than the original budget of £60,896 by £5,478 (or 9.00%). The 
sum required to be drawn from reserves to balance the budget is 
therefore expected to reduce from £6,883 to £1,405. 

4 An analysis of the expenditure over subjective budget headings is set 
out in Appendix 2. 

5 Explanations regarding the main variances between actual expenditure 
and the budget are provided below:

TRANSPORT

6 Based upon the current activity levels, it is anticipated that actual 
expenditure on transport will be £8,222 at the financial year end which 
is £884 (or 12.05%) more than the original budget. This budget head 
will need to be closely monitored up to the end of the year.



2

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES

7 The total expenditure on supplies and services is £1,785 less than the 
profiled budget to date. Based upon the activity levels to date, the 
supplies and services outturn figure at 31 March 2016 is expected to 
be £16,102; an underspend of £2,607 (or 13.93%) in comparison to the 
annual budget. This is mainly due to an underspend on hospitality due 
to a lower number of functions attended to date, and a saving on the 
cost of insurance. This budget head will be closely monitored for the 
remainder of this financial year.

INCOME

8 The Mayor’s civic dinner generated income of £3,390, which had not 
been included in the original budget.

FORECAST OF OUTTURN

9 The latest forecast of expenditure to 31 March 2016 is £55,418, an 
underspend of £5,478 (or 9.00%) against the net expenditure budget of 
£60,896. 

GENERAL RESERVE

10 The general reserve balance at 1 April 2015 was £67,097. With an 
underspend of £5,478 as projected, the amount required to be drawn 
from reserves would be £1,405, rather than the original budget figure of 
£6,883. Consequently the reserve balance would decrease to £65,692 
as at 31 March 2016.

VAT

11 As at 30 September 2015 the total VAT paid and reclaimed was 
£1,393.20. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

12 It is RECOMMENDED that the City of Durham Charter Trustees:

 note the outturn position for the period ended 30 September 2015; 

 note the forecast of outturn to 31 March 2016;

Contact:      Beverley White,    Tel. 03000 261900



3

APPENDIX 1

RISKS AND IMPLICATIONS

Finance

The report provides information on the: 

 actual expenditure compared to the profiled budget to 30 September 
2015

 forecast of expenditure to 31 March 2016 in comparison to the 2015/16 
original budget 

Staffing
None

Equality and Diversity
None

Accommodation
None

Crime and Disorder
None

Human Rights
None

Consultation
None

Procurement
None

Disability Discrimination Act
None

Legal Implications
None



4

APPENDIX 2

ACTUAL OUTTURN COMPARED TO THE PROFILED BUDGET TO 
30 SEPTEMBER 2015 AND PROJECTED OUTTURN TO 31 MARCH 2016

Annual 
Budget 
2015/16 Budget Head

Profiled 
budget 
to date

Year to 
date 

Actual
Projected 
Outturn

Variance 
(Projected 
Outturn v 

Annual 
Budget)

       
£ £ £ £ £

 Employees     
0 Mayor's Allowance 0 0 0 0
0 Deputy Mayor's Allowance 0 0 0 0

     
 Premises     

3,398 Town Hall 3,398 3,398 3,398 0
     
 Transport     

7,338 General transport 3,669 4,111 8,222 884
2,964 Sergeants at Mace/ Bodyguard 2,900 2,900 2,900 -64

     
 Supplies and Services     

15,758 Mayor's hospitality 7,879 6,052 14,000 -1,758
406 General office expenses 203 245 490 84

2,088 Insurance 1,282 1,282 1,282 -806
457 External Audit 0 0 330 -127

     
 Support Services     

16,263 Administration 8,132 7,984 15,967 -296
12,264 Support Services 6,132 6,132 12,264 0

     
 Income     

0 Mayor's Civic Dinner 0 -3,390 -3,390 -3,390
-40 Investment income -20 -30 -45 -5

     
60,896 Net Expenditure 33,575 28,684 55,418 -5,478

     
-8,064 Council Tax Support Grant -8,064 -8,064 -8,064 0
-6,883 Transfer to/ -from Reserves 0 0 -1,405 5,478

     
45,949 Net budget 25,511 20,620 45,949 0


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on the 17 June 2015
	4 Update Report - Report of the Clerk to the Charter Trustees
	5 Conclusion of Audit for the year ended 31 March 2015 - Report of the Treasurer
	Final Annual Report at 31-3-15 -Audited (2)
	Issues Arising Report - BDO for 31-3-15 (2)

	6 Revenue Outturn for the period ending 30 September 2015 and Projected Outturn to 31 March 2016 - Report of the Treasurer

